PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

Survey #: P.G. #71B-15 Building Date: ca. 1727, 1802
1900, 1970

Building Name: Fair Running

Location: 7704 Laurel-Bowie Road, Bowie, Maryland

Public/Recreation/Occupied/Good/Accessible

Description

Fair Running is a two-and-one-half story stone gambrel-roof building
of the early eighteenth century; it has been much expanded and altered and
today serves as the clubhouse of the Bowie Golf and Country Club. The
oldest part of the building is two and one half stories high, with gambrel
roof, built of Tocal iron-bearing sandstone painted white. It is four
bays by two bays, and faces roughly east. The original east entrance is
now hidden by a porch which has been enclosed to form a modern one-story
flat-roof lobby. There are three irregularly spaced shed-roof dormers in
the Tower east plane of the roof. There is an exterior stone chimney cen-
tered in the south gambrel end; it has weatherings above the second story
windows and is built of brick above the weatherings. There is an interior
flush chimney at the north gambrel end. The gambrel roof is covered with
gray asbestos shingle. There is a two-story frame gable-roof wing extend-
ing west from and at right angles to the main block, built at the begin-
ning of this century. Wrapped around the south, west, and north of this
wing is a modern flat-roof addition. Beneath the south three-quarters of
the main block, the stone foundation encloses a cellar.

Significance:

Fair Running is a rare surviving example of an early eighteenth
century stone gambrel-roof dwelling. The house stands on Isaac's
Discovery; in 1727 Joseph Peach built on it this small stone house,
approximately 20 feet by 20 feet, with gambrel roof. In the years
following, Peach acquired two more tracts which adjoined his home
plantation; the lands passed to his son and grandson of the same name.
Early in the nineteenth century Joseph Peach 111 expanded his small stone
dwelling; on a stone in the wall of the exterior basement stairs was
carved "Rebuilt 1802". At the same time, he resurveyed his property and
renamed it Fair Running. The plantation changed hands several times
during the nineteenth century; in 1885, the 234-acre farm and dwelling
house were sold to Bernard F. Maenner, who added the two-story west wing.
In 1965, the Maenner family sold the house, with 130 acres, to the Belair
Golf and Country Club, and the house has subsequently undergone
significant changes. In spite of these alterations, Fair Running remains
a very significant historic site; it is one of only two surviving examples
of this type in Prince George's County.

Acreage: 130.3847 acres



Survey No. PG #71B-15

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _no
1 . Name {indicate preferred name)
historic Fair Running (preferred)
and/or common Rowie Golf and Countryv Club
2. Location
street & number 7704 Laurel Bowie Road ____ not for publication
city, town Bowie —__ vicinity of congressional district 5
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—— district —X_ public —X_ occupied —_ agriculture — museum
X _ building(s) . private —— unoccupied —__ commercial — park
__ structure . both — work in progress —_ educational — private residence
—_slte Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment — religious
— object — In process —__yes: restricted —__ government — scientific
— being considered — yes: unrestricted — industrial — transportati
xnot applicable _x no —_ military . X _other cfubhouse

4. Ownel' Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name City of Bowie
street & number 2614 Kenhill Drive telephone no.:
city, town Bowie state and zip code Maryland 20715

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 5460
street & number Main Street folio 004
city, town Upper Marlboro state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing =uistorical surveys

titte P.G. Historic Sites & Districts Plan

date 1981 —_federal __state X _county ____ local

depository for survey records Historic Preservation Commission c¢/o MNCPPC

city,town  Upper Marlboro state Maryland




7. Description Survey No.p. G.#71B-15

Condition Check one cn’ci:ono

—— excelient — deteriorated __ unaltered — original site

—X good —ruins X aitered —moved date of move
— fair —— unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

-~

Fair Running (or the Maenner House) is a two-and-one-half story stone
gambrel-roof building of the early eighteenth century; it has been much
expanded and altered and today serves as the clubhouse of the Bowie Golf
and Country Club. It is one of only two surviving buildings of its type
in Prince George's County.

The oldest part of the building is two and one half stories high,
with gambrel roof, built of local iron-bearing sandstone painted white.
It is roughly 40 by 23-1/2 feet, four bays by two bays, and faces roughly
east, with the original entrance in the third bay of the main east facade.
This entrance is now hidden by a porch which has been enclosed to form a
modern one-story flat-roof Tobby; it is sided with white asbestos shingle,
and it spans the entire east facade. There are three irregularly spaced
shed-roof dormers in the lower east plane of the roof; the dormers enclose
2/2 barred windows. There is an exterior stone chimney centered in the
south gambrel end; it has weatherings above the second story windows and
is built of brick above the weatherings.

The chimney is flanked by two 4/4 double hung sash windows at second
story level, and by two small four-pane single sash windows at third story
level. There is an interior flush chimney at the north gambrel end; this
north gambrel end is heavily stuccoed and has no openings. The gambrel
roof is covered with gray asbestos shingle.

There is a two-story frame gable-roof wing extending west from and at
right angles to the main block, built at the beginning of this century.
It is two bays by one. Wrapped around the south, west, and north of this
wing is a modern flat-roof addition, sheathed with white aluminum siding.
The addition continues and wraps around the north gambrel end of the
original building; the large northerly section serves now as a restaurant.

Interior of the main block has been greatly altered and modernized.
The open-string one-run stair rises along the south wall of the stair
hall; it has a slim turned newel, with tapered balusters. Surrounds of
doors and windows have modern moldings. In the west wing, doors and
windows have plain board surrounds with bullseye corner blocks.

Beneath the south three-quarters of the main block, the stone
foundation encloses a cellar. An exterior entrance to his cellar was
constructed in 1802 at its southeast corner.

A twentieth century barn, with vertical siding and gambrel roof,
stands just north of the unpaved lane which gives access to the property
from the Laurel-Bowie Road.




8. Significance Survey No. p . 4 71p-15

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

___prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric __ community pianning __ landscape architecture reilgion

— 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation — law — science

— 1500-1599 ___ agricuiture —— economics — literature — sculpture

.1t_1600b1699 —X_ architecture —— sducation — Mmilitary — social/

—_— 1700-1799 __art — engineering — music humanitarian

X_1800-1899 __ commerce — exploration/settiement ____ philosophy - — theater

— 1900- —— communications — industry — politics/government __ transportatior
— invention —— other (specify

Specific dates 1727, 1802, 1900,1970Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _A _B __C _D
and/or
Applicable Exception: __A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national __state __local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Fair Running (or the Maenner House) is a rare surviving example of an
early eighteenth century stone gambrel-roof dwelling. Although it has
been substantially expanded and altered to serve as a modern clubhouse, it
is an important example of a substantial early house type, and one of only
two surviving buildings of this type in Prince George's County.

The house stands on Isaac's Discovery, part of a larger tract
patented as Fair Running. The property, 155 acres of Isaac's Discovery,
was sold in 1726 to Joseph Peach (I), Schoolmaster, by his father-in-law,
Richard Isaac. In the next year, Peach constructed a small stone house,
approximately 20 feet by 20 feet, with gambrel roof. It was built of
local iron-bearing sandstone and had a full basement under most of the
house. [On one of the stones that formed the inner basement wall were
scratched the initials (?) P and the number 1727, almost certainly indicat-
ing the year of its construction. The former location of this date has
been pointed out by elderly members of the Maenner family (the last pri-
vate owners); this date is no longer visible due to recent alterations in
the basement.]

In the years following, Joseph Peach acquired two more tracts which
adjoined his home plantation: in 1740, Peach Plains was patented to him
for 100 acres?; it lay along the Patuxent River to the east of Isaac's
Discovery; in 1749, he purchased from Samuel Farmer 177 acres of Farmer's
Reserve?d; this tract lay to the north and west of Isaac's Discovery. He
was by then a moderately successful planter and was known as such, no
Tonger as a schoolmaster; he had a 432-acre plantation, consisting of the
above mentioned three adjoining tracts, as well as several other non-con-
tiguous tracts. When he died in 1764, he devised the three tracts
(Farmer's Reserve, Peach Plains and Isaac's Discovery) which made up his
plantation to his sons Isaac and John. John died within a few years of
his father, and Isaac deeded to his younger brother, Joseph, half interest
in the lands.? Joseph Peach (II) took possession of the plantation.



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST Survey !MNo. P.G.#71B-15
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM )
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Statement of Significance (continued) - g

Joseph Peach (II) died in 1775, leaving the plantation to his son
Joseph (III). His will also made it clear that his wife Lucy was to have
a home on the plantation as long as she remained a widow, and likewise his
surviving brother, Isaac, who had a life estate in the property. -

By 1798, when the first Federal Direct Tax Assessment was recorded,
Joseph Peach (III) was assessed for a single-story stone dwelling house,
20 foot square, evaluated at $200, and five outbuildings: a kitchen 20' «x
16', a negro house 18' x 16', a meat house 16' square, a corn house 20' x
12' and a stable 18' x 12.7

In the next few years Joseph Peach (III) took steps to expand his
small stone dwelling. The nature and extent of this addition cannot
accurately be determined without more thorough architectural investiga-
tion, but the length was increased to its present 40 feet. On a stone in
the wall of the exterior basement stairs was carved "Rebuilt 1802". (This
date was read and recorded by a member of the Maenner family; it probably
can still be seen, but is presently blocked by plumbing and heating facili-
ties in the basement).

At about this time, Joseph Peach (III) applied for a resurvey of this
property; the survey was completed in 1802, and the three tracts, Farmer's
Reserve, Isaac's Discovery and Peach Plains, were combined into one new
tract called Fair Running and patented to Peach in 1813. The total
acreage was now 369-1/2 acres, 91-1/4 acres of Peach Plains having been
subtracted, and some small pieces of vacant land having been added to the
total.® From this point on, the plantation was consistently known as Fair
Running, no doubt in reference to the Horsepen Branch which flows through
the farm,

Joseph Peach sold the greater part of his plantation (251 acres of
Fair Running) to Barton Duvall in 1814,9 and the house and 234 acres
remained in the Duvall family until 1850. In the small graveyard to the
west of the house were buried several members of the Peach and Duvall
families. 1In 1850 the 234 acre farm was sold by Philip and Mary Ann
Duvall to Richard and Truman Cross for the use of Elizabeth Page.10 It is
Elizabeth Page's name which appears on the Martenet Map of 1861.11 Mrs.
Page's two sons mortgaged Fair Running to Truman Cross in 1874, very soon
after which Cross died; the Pages defaulted on_their mortgage payments,
and Cross' executor sold the property in 1879. 2 (It is the name
Slingluff, Cross' executor, which appears on the Hopkins map of 1878.)
After two more short term owners, the 234-acre farm and dwelling house
were sold to Bernard F. Maenner and his wife, Elizabeth, in 1885.13  Thus
began the 80 year residence of the Maenner family, last private owners of
this historic house.

In the first decade of this century, Bernard F. Maenner constructed
the two-story kitchen wing which extends to the rear of the main house,
making the house structure T-shaped. It was probably also at this time

that the.sh%d,dormers were added. His children, and his son's children
grew up 1n this house, and 1t came to be known by their name, i.e., the
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Maenner House. The elder Maenner told his children about the Peach/Duvall
graveyard a short distance west of the house; although by the time of his
death in 1946 the stones were gone, he remembered the names inscribed on
them, and made sure that the graveyard site was protected.

In 1965, Bernard F. Maenner (II) and his wife sold the house, with
130 acres, to the Belair Golf_and Country Club, and moved into a small
house on their adjacent land. 4 Since its acquisition by the club, the
house has undergone significant changes. A one-story addition, nearly as
deep as the main house, has been built across the entire south facade,
providing a lobby and sales room for the club. A one-story addition has
also been constructed to the rear and north sides, wrapping around the
kitchen wing, and providing a comfortable dining room.

Although the original exterior structure is partially hidden by these
additions, and the interior has been extensively renovated, Fair Running
remains a very significant historic site. It is one of only two surviving
examples of this once popular architectural style in Prince George's
County, i.e., stone construction with gambrel roof. The second example,
the Hilleary-Magruder House (#69-7), is a larger house, constructed in
1745 on a lot in the newly created Town of Bladensburg. In contrast, Fair
Running was constructed as a farm dwelling on a large tract in a rural
area. It is certainly the oldest structure in the northern part of Prince
George's County, and only the fourth or fifth oldest dwelling house in the
entire County.

Notes

1 prince George's County Deeds, Liber M, Folio 98.

2 patented Certificate #1650. °

3 Prince George's County Deeds, Liber BB, Folio 667.

4 pPrince George's County Will, Liber #1, Folio 569.

5 Prince George's County Deeds, Liber BB #2, Folio 345.
6 prince George's County Will, Liber T #1, Folio 27.

7 Federal Direct Tax, 1798, Horsepen Hundred.

8 patented Certificate #797; recorded Patents Liber I B# B, Folio 397.
9 Prince George's County Deeds, Liber JRM #16, Folio 11.
10 prince George's County Deeds, Liber JBB #7, Folio 11.

11 Martenet's Map of Prince George's County, Maryland, Simon J. Martenet,
Baltimore, 1861.
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Survey Mo. p.g 7181

12 prince George's County Deeds, Liber HB #8, Folio 264; Liber ATB #1,
Folio 45.

13 at1as of Fifteen Miles Around Washington including the County of Prince
George's, G. M. Hopkins, Philadelphia 1878,

14 prince George's County Deeds, Liber JWB #4, Folio 600.

15 prince George's County Deeds, Liber #3209, Folio 575.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. pg #718-15
cf. Chain of Title
cf. notes, Item #8
10. Geographical Data
Acre‘ggofnom'nated propeny 130.3847 acres TaX Map 37, Parce] 36
Lanham 1:24,000

Quadrangie name
UTM References Jo NOT complete UTM references

Quadrangie scale

A bt ey b SR T

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
clo e bt b b byl ol Wty ba b taald
el Loty d L b b d Fllll[lllllLLlllll]
GI]IIII'IJ_IlllllllJ H|11111|11_1|11L|11J
Verbal boundary description and justification
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Susan G. Pearl, Research/Architectural Historian

PG Historic Preservation Commission

organization c/o MNCPPC date June 1988
street & number #4010 CAB telephone 952-3521
city or town Upper Marlborg state  Msrvland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 2 ID ORIGINAL (! known; PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a story and a half, stone Structure, now
with additions on the main and back facades. The west gable
end has a two story stone chimney base with a brick stack;

at the second floor level, narrow 4/4 double hung sash windows
tlank the stack and in the loft above, there are small, four
light, non-opening sash. The south facade has three shed-
roofed dormers with 4/4 double hung sash. The west gable end,
with a flush-gable chimney, has been stuccoed; the doogyay on

the first floor has been closed off,.
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

HISTCRIC SITES SUMMARY SHEET

P.G. County Survey &  71B-15 Date 18th, 19th, 20th c.

Building Nane Maenner House (Belair Golf Club)

Location Md. Route #1 i ’ BOWie, Md,

Open to Public * yes no

The old stone house at Bowie Golf Club has been altered by the
addition of a two-story addition at the rear and a one-story shed-
roofed additions at the front and rear. The old house has a
gambrel roof pierced by three dormers on the front slopes which
are not placed symmetrically. The rear roof has only one exposed
dormer. The space where the other two probably were located is
now coverad by the two-story addition. The chimney at the east
gable is on the interior while the ~m=ssite end of the house has
a chimney which is half-inside and »alf-outside the gable end wall.
Both chimneys are located at the ridge; The walls of the house are
stone and painted whitc. There is a cellar under approximately the
center third of the house. It has a dirt floor, iron pyrite stonc
foundation walls, hand-cut beams, and the exposed floor boards of
the first floor arc about seven inches wide.

01d photographs which were taken before 1960 show the front
facade as having four bays with the entrance in the third bay;

The Maenner house is significant even though it has been altered
cxtensively, because the old part represents a type of architecture
popular during the eighteenth century of which no other example
remains locally. The land is part of the tract Isaac's Discovery
which was resurveyed in 1802 as Pair Running. In the 1798 Federal
may 1ist Joseph Peach wns listed as the owner of a stone house at

this location which ig belicved %o be part ol the present structura,
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MARYLAMD HISTORICAL TRUST
P.G. & T71B-15

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

A

T .
L éNfSA\’A

HISTCRIC

AND.'OP COMMNON
Bowie Golf Club Belair Golf and Country Club lMaenner House

{ TLOCATION

STREET & NUMEER

Hd. Route 167

CITY, TOWN CONGRESS!IONAL DISTRICT
0"1'10 _.x.. VICINITY OF
1r - COUNTY
STATE laryland Prince George's

15 CLASSIFICATION

CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISIRICT __puUBLIC XoccurieDd __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
X BUILDINGIS) _YeRIVATE ) __UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RES!IDENCE
__SiE PURBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __PELIGIOUS
__OBJECT __INPROCESS __YES KESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC

__BEING CONSIDERED XvYES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTAT.ON
__NO __MILITARY X otHER golf clul

;OX'JI\ R OF PRACPERTY

NAME Bowle Golf Club, Inc,

Telephone #:

STREET & NUMEER

CITY. TOWNN STATE , Z1p <code
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CAT 1 s TN IDTI(Y
t‘ 3L KD\ O.. LJ.-J(JA]J }J (JRLP i(JN Liber #; b216
COURTHOUSE Folio #%:
REGISTRY OF DEEDS ETC Courthouse 793
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Uprexr FHarlboro Faryland
= . _—
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ERSRARIEESTIS o trel Vot PG CHBs

CORDITION CHECK OHNE CHECK OiE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTESED _YORIGINAL SITL
AGUCD __RUINS _XALTERED __MOVED DATE.
FAIR _._UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOVYN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The ¢ld stone house at Zowle Golf Club has been altered by the
addition of a two-story additicn at the rear and one-story shed-roofled
additicns at the front and rcor., The old kouse has a gambrel roof plierced
by tihwee dormers on the front slopes which are not placed symmetrically.
The rear roof has only cne exposed dormer. The space where the other two
protably were located 1s nci covered by the twé-story additiocn. The chinney
at the east gable i1s on the interior while the opposite end of the house has
a chimney which is half inside and half outside the gable end wall, Both-
chimnays are located at the ridze. The walls are stone and painted white,
The cellar is under approximztely the center third of the house. It has
a dirt floor, ircn pyrite foundatlon walls, hand-cut beams, and the floor
boards of the first floor are atout seven inches wide,

0ld photograrvhs which were taken before 1960, show the front facade as
having four bays with the entrance in the third bay and four steps leading to
the ground level.

CONTINURN ON SEUARATE SHyed IF  NHCESSARY
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LCGrETICAnICE

PLRIOD ARFAS GF SIGNIFICANCE - CHECK AND JUSTIFY BEELCW
__PREMISTURIC  _ARCHEOLUSY PREMISTORIC - COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
14001449 __ARCHEQLOLY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATIGN . LAW __SCIENCE
—1500. 1559 __AGPRICULTUPRE __ECONOMICS __UTERATURE __SCULPTURE
__1600-1539 X ARCHITECTURE —_EDUCATION __MIUTARY ' _SOCIAL' HUMANITA R0
X1700 1743 —ART . _ENGINEERING _MUSIC __THEATER
X180C 1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILGSOPHY __TRANSPGRTATION
Xisoo- __COMMUINCATIONS __INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT _OTHER (SPECIEY:

INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This house is significant even though it has been altered extensively because ihe
0ld part repressnts a type of architecture which was popular in the immediate arex

during the 18th century and no other exanple remains there., The land is part of
the trzct Isaccs Discovery vwhich was resurveyed in 1802 as Falr Running., In the 1770

[

Federal Tax list Joseph Pezch was listed as the ewner of a stone house at thls locaricon

which is believed {0 be part ¢f the pressnt structure.

CONTLHRUD ON SEDPARATE SHIIET IF NECISSARY
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New addition ,' .

Enclosed porch (Lobby)
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P.G. #71B-15)

(former 71A-7)
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NAME  MAENWER Mouse. (fecare c.c )
LOCATION Bk 197 Bowse, M FG 7@,

FACADE W
PHOTO TAKE  2/29/7¢¢ mowree
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